ARIZONA STATE LEGISLATURE

SENATE HEALTH AND HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES HEALTH COMMITTEE OF
REFERENCE FOR THE:
SUNSET OF THE HEALTH FACILITIES AUTHORITY
SUNSET OF THE MEDICAL RADIOLOGIC TECHNOLOGY BOARD OF EXAMINERS
SUNSET OF THE NURSING CARE INSTITUTION ADMINISTRATION AND
ASSISTED LIVING
SUNSET OF THE BOARD OF HOMEOPATHIC MEDICAL EXAMINERS
SUNRISE REQUEST OF THE ARIZONA ASSOCIATION FOR HOME CARE
SUNRISE REQUEST OF THE ARIZONA MIDWIFERY INSTITUTE
SUNRISE REQUEST OF THE ARIZONA ALLIANCE OF SURGICAL SPECIALISTS

Minutes of the Meeting

Tuesday, November 8, 2005
9:00 a.m., House Hearing Room 1

Members Present:

Senator Jim Waring, Co-Chair Representative Rick Murphy, Co-Chair
Senator Carolyn Allen Representative Laura Knaperek
Senator Marsha Arzberger Representative Linda Lopez

Senator Robert Cannell Representative Doug Quelland

Senator Barbara Leff

Members Absent:
Representative David Bradley

Staff:
Beth Kohler, Senate Health Research Analyst
Elizabeth Baskett, House Health Research Analyst

Co-chairman Murphy called the meeting to order at 9:12 a.m. and attendance was
noted.

Presentation by the Health Facilities Authority

Blaine Bandi, Executive Director, Health Facilities Authority (HFA), stated that his
organization was established in 1977 to issue bonds exempt from income tax on the
Authorities interest which enables them to get lower interest rates. He explained that the
Authority would then loan their proceeds to health care facilities at lower rates than the
healthcare facilities would receive from banks. Mr. Bandi remarked that the Authority
provided low cost loans for rural and underserved healthcare facilities.

He stated that rural communities that have benefited from the program included:



Flagstaff
Kingman
Prescott
Wickenburg
Douglas
Springerville
Page
Bisbee
Camp Verde
Fort Mojave
Peach Springs
Sacaton
Elfrida
Morenci

Ajo

St. Michaels

Mr. Bandi remarked that the Health Facilities Authority was not a regulatory agency and
that it existed solely to improve the health care for the residents of Arizona through the
financing of critical health care projects. He remarked that failure to continue the
Authority would deprive the State’s health care providers of a needed source of tax
exempt financing. He respectfully requested the Committee of Reference recommend
the Arizona Health Facilities Authority be continued for ten years.

In response to Senator Cannell’s question about the possibility of a hospital not paying
their loan back, Mr. Bandi told the Committee that since the inception of the HFA in
1977, this had only occurred once. He remarked that payments by that hospital were
still being made to HFA. Mr. Bandi added that the residents of the State have no legal
obligation to back up those bonds because they were issued solely on the credit of the
institution.

Representative Knaperek asked Mr. Bandi to list the seven directors for HFA and he did
so as follows:

1. Bruce Gulledge, health care underwriter who does financing for health
care institutions across the country.

2. Donald Shropshire, former hospital administrator; Tucson Medical
Center.

3. Jennifer Ryan, community health center director from Southern Arizona.

4. Rufus Glasper, Chancellor of the Maricopa County Community College
District.

SENATE HEALTH AND HOUSE HEALTH COMMITTEE
OF REFERENCE

Tuesday, November 8, 2005

Page 2



5. William Emerson, City Attorney for the City of Peoria.
6. Susan Straussner, Community Health Nurse from Parnell County.
7. Steven Russo, Bond Attorney based in Tucson.

In response to Representative Knaperek’s question about funding, Mr. Bandi told the
Committee that the HFA’s annual budget was approximately $300,000 per year and that
revenues to the Authority were generated through bond financing activities. He stated
that when the HFA approved bonds, applicants are paying one basis point, which is .01
of one percent of total financing. He remarked that additionally applicants paid 7.5 basis
points which was equal to .075 percent. Mr. Bandi told the Committee that the HFA
brought in between $300,000 to one million dollars per year, a five year cycle with one
million dollars every fifth year. He added that the extra money was used for loans to
other healthcare facilities in underserved parts of the State. Mr. Bandi told the
Committee that the credit rate was predicated on a number of things, the most
prominent being the credit worthiness of the applicant and also on the term and purpose
of the loan. He remarked that he had seen the interest rates in the range of about four
percent up to about seven percent.

Representative Knaperek asked the amount of savings in interest rates there was for
people who used the HFA services. Mr. Bandi responded that historically, the industry
used a figure of 15 percent savings going to tax exempt financing versus taxable
financing. He stated that today, when interest rates are lower, that 15 percent figure
would be closer to 10 or 11 percent.

In response to Representative Quelland, Mr. Bandi stated that the title holder on any
property in which the HFA loaned money is going to be that non-profit corporation. He
remarked that the HFA had liens on record for every loan they do. Mr. Bandi explained
that the bond financing has specific guidelines and rules the HFA must follow in the
event of a default.

In response to Senator Leff, Mr. Bandi told the Committee that HFA hired a lobbyist
solely from lack of experience with legislative scenarios and to help the organization
navigate through the process.

Representative Quelland moved that the Senate Health and House
Health Committee of Reference recommend to continue the Health
Facilities Authority Board for ten years. By voice vote, the motion
CARRIED.

Presentation by the Medical Radiologic Technology Board of Examiners

Aubrey Godwin, Director, Radiation Regulatory Agency, told the Committee that the
Medical Radiologic Technology Board of Examiners (MRTBE) was created in 1977 by

SENATE HEALTH AND HOUSE HEALTH COMMITTEE
OF REFERENCE

Tuesday, November 8, 2005

Page 3



legislation due to the large number of unqualified technicians in the State. He stated that
the role of MRTBE was to make sure that technicians or people applying ionizing
radiation to a human being had been properly trained. He remarked that the type of
technologist observed by MRTBE were X-ray, therapy, nuclear medicine and
mammography technologists. Mr. Godwin pointed out that nuclear medicine technology
had been added recently to MRTBE’s certification program. He stated that MRTBE
presently had approximately 9,000 certificate holders, some of whom hold dual
certification. Mr. Godwin pointed out that most of the MRTBE cases dealing with
disciplinary matters were related to failure to pay dues or questionable certifications
since their last sunset review.

In response to Senator Allen, Mr. Godwin explained that drug treatment was made
available through MRTBE for certified technicians who may need it and failure to
successfully complete these proceedings would result in termination of certification.

In response to Senator Cannell, Mr. Godwin said that most of the drug related issues
with technicians took place in larger institutions such as hospitals as opposed to private
physician offices. He stated that if the institution where a troubled technician worked
had a drug treatment program, MRTBE would direct the technician to utilize that
program and if not, the technician would attend an independent drug program paid for
by the technician.

In response to Senator Arzberger, Mr. Godwin remarked that due to the different State
requirements for technician certification, out of town applicants must be certified in
Arizona before working in this State.

In response to Representative Knaperek, Mr. Godwin told the Committee that there
were both nationally certified and non-nationally certified radiological technician schools
in Arizona. He stated that the vacancy on MRTBE had been available for less than one
year.

In response to Representative Murphy, Mr. Godwin told the Committee that he looked
forward to finding a citizen to fill the vacancy on the MRTBE.

In response to Representative Knaperek, Mr. Godwin remarked that due to the shortage
of technicians in the State, Arizona has experienced an influx of out of State
technicians.

In response to Senator Allen, John Gray, Program Manager, MRTBE, informed the
Committee that a high school graduate could enter into the field of radiological
technology either through community college or privately funded programs. He added
that private school training took two years or less.

In response to Senator Leff, Mr. Godwin stated that there was a continuing education
requirement in place for the field of radiological technology due to changing technology.

SENATE HEALTH AND HOUSE HEALTH COMMITTEE
OF REFERENCE

Tuesday, November 8, 2005

Page 4



Public Testimony

Jerry High, Arizona State Society of Radiologic Technologists, told the Committee
that out of concern for public safety, he was glad that certification was required before
becoming a technician.

In response to Senator Leff, Mr. Hyde said that passing the “Registry,” a test sponsored
by the American Association of Radiologic Technology (AART) was very difficult, yet
allowed him to be nationally certified.

In response to Senator Leff, Mr. Godwin told the Committee that radiologic
technologists were certified professionals, not licensed professionals.

Stephen Sapareto, Director of Medical Physics, Banner Good Samaritan Hospital,
stated that he was the boss of the technologists at his facility and expressed the
importance of technologists to be certified. He pointed out that another group certified
by MRTBE were radiologic therapists, who administered ongoing care such as
chemotherapy, and that it was especially important for these therapists to be certified.

In response to Senator Leff, Mr. Safereto explained that radiologic technologists and
therapists had a chief technologist or therapist supervising them, followed by a chain of
command that ultimately led to a physician at his facility.

Jeff Siupik, Director of Radiation Services, MRTBE told the Committee that being a
director of technologists, he is concerned about the shortage of technologists in the
State due to strict standards by the MRTBE on non-local technologist operating
machinery in a crisis situation.

Senator Leff opined that two weeks, the time it takes for MRTBE to certify a non-local
technician, was not a long period of time.

Representative Quelland moved that the Senate Health and House
Health Committee of Reference recommend to continue the Medical
Radiologic Technology Board of Examiners for ten years. The motion
CARRIED by voice vote.

Presentation by the Board of Examiners of Nursing Care Institution
Administrators and Assisted Living Facility Managers

Allen Imig, Executive Director, Board of Examiners of Nursing Care Institution
Administrators and Assisted Living Facility Managers (BENCIA/ALFM), informed
the Committee that the Board was created in 1975 to protect the public’s health and
welfare by regulating and licensing nursing care institution administrators. He stated that
in 1990, the board statutes were amended to add the responsibility of certifying and
regulating adult home care managers and renamed in 1998 to Assisted Living Facility
Managers. The mission of the Board was to protect the health, welfare and safety of its

SENATE HEALTH AND HOUSE HEALTH COMMITTEE
OF REFERENCE

Tuesday, November 8, 2005

Page 5



citizens, to seek and institute the use of services of nursing care institution
administrators and assisted living facility managers. Mr. Imig said that the Board’s
procedures helped ensure quality and competency standards were met by
administrators and managers. In addition, the Board approves continuing education
courses to make sure quality and useful education is being taught. He explained that
since June of 2005, the Board had undergone an “extreme makeover” with virtually all
new members being appointed. This reduced the back log of uninvestigated complaints
significantly. Mr. Imig told the Committee that the Board had reduced their staff from five
to three, leaving an executive director, investigator and a licensing coordinator. He
encouraged the Committee to continue the BENCIA/ALFM.

In response to Senator Allen, Mr. Imig said that the Board consisted of five managers,
two public members and the remaining members were administrators.

Senator Allen opined that home care nursing staff deserved better pay.

In response to Senator Waring, Mr. Imig stated that the changes made to the Board has
helped, but not solved its financial problems.

In response to Senator Arzberger, Mr. Imig said that his Board investigated complaints
from citizens regarding private care nurses and administrators as well as complaints
filed by the Department of Health Services.

In response to Senator Waring, Mr. Imig told the Committee that the Board’s website
contained information regarding decisions on disciplinary action.

In response to Senator Allen, Mr. Imig explained that out of the last renewal period for
managers, 2,000 of 2,500-2,600 renewal notices sent were renewed, causing 578
expired notices to be sent by the Board.

In response to Senator Leff, Mr. Imig opined that his Board received between 60 and 70
complaints a year, mainly not health care related but administrative related.

In response to Senator Waring, Mr. Imig stated that with the current staff, the Board
should catch up on its back log of complaints by January 2006.

In response to Representative Quelland, Mr. Imig remarked that the Board was actively
seeking replacements for the three vacancies on the Board.

Senator Leff suggested that the Committee send a letter to the Governor encouraging
her to appoint the three positions.

In response to Representative Quelland, Mr. Imig opined that he would like to see a five
year continuation be given to the Board.

SENATE HEALTH AND HOUSE HEALTH COMMITTEE
OF REFERENCE

Tuesday, November 8, 2005

Page 6



Representative Knaperek remarked that time elected to the Board would reflect
concerns with term limits and not reflect faith in Mr. Imig.

Public Testimony

Robert Frechettee, President, Arizona Health Care Association (AHCA), told the
Committee that on behalf of his Board, he would like to offer support in the continuation
of the BENCIA/ALFM. He opined that the efforts implemented by the new staff showed
that the Board was very serious about suggestions and concerns brought forth by the
Legislature.

In response to Senator Waring, Mr. Bruschette stated that the AHCA was seen as the
organization that represented the for profit facilities, containing some non-profit facilities
and representing assisted living communities and independent full service communities.
He said that Assisted Living Federation represents assisted living centers in homes and
the Arizona Association of Homes for the Aging represents a number of facilities seen
as non-profit businesses.

In response to Senator Cannell, Mr. Bruschette opined that if fee increases were
necessary to fund the continuation of the Board, that it would be supported by AHCA.

Senator Leff stated that if the Committee made a five year recommendation at this
meeting and the audit comes out in December and is changed, the legislation coming
out in January does not have to be the same as the recommendation.

Representative Knaperek told the Committee that Mr. Imig had a good work history as a
Director in other fields.

In response to Representative Knaperek, Beth Kohler, Senate Health Research Analyst,
stated that the first audit of the Board would take place approximately six months after
nomination adding an 18 month follow up audit, only if the requirements and
recommendations made by the report were not met.

Representative Quelland moved that the Senate Health and House
Health Committee of Reference recommend that the Board of
Examiners of Nursing Care Institution Administrators and Assisted
Living Facility Managers be continued for two years. The motion
FAILED.

Representative Quelland moved that the Senate Health and House
Health Committee of Reference recommend that the Board of
Examiners Nursing Care Institution Administrators and Assisted
Living Facility Managers be continued for five years pending the
findings of the Auditor General's report due in December of 2005.
The motion CARRIED.

SENATE HEALTH AND HOUSE HEALTH COMMITTEE
OF REFERENCE

Tuesday, November 8, 2005

Page 7



Presentation by the Board of Homeopathic Medical Examiners

Chris Springer, Executive Director, Homeopathic Board, told the Committee that
she had worked for the Board of Homeopathic Medical Examiners (BHME) since 1999.
She complimented appointments made to the Board by all of the Governors on both the
Democrat and Republican side. She opined that the laws governing the licensing of
homeopathic physicians set forth by the State had been upheld. Ms. Springer stated
that a potential audit could be helpful in improving procedures and welcomed the
process of an impartial audit. She said that the Board currently has 117 licensed
homeopathic physicians.

Senator Leff opined that it was nice to hear Ms. Springer suggest an audit of the Board
and noted that BHME had gone approximately 20 years without an audit.

Senator Allen opined that she would like to see an audit of the BHME as well. She
added that in no way did legislation intend to do away with the homeopathic form of
medicine.

In response to Representative Lopez, Ms. Springer stated that a licensed homeopathic
physician could only continue to practice in one state after receiving disciplinary action
in another state for less than one year, due to the Board’s annual renewal application
required of all homeopathic physicians, which would discover the violation in the other
state.

In response to Representative Murphy, Ms. Springer said that there was the possibility
of a physician being dishonest about any past disciplinary action, however, there is a
standard penalty in place for such an event.

In response to Senator Waring, Ms. Springer told the Committee that there was not an
easily accessible data base of criminal background checks for physicians and added
that the fee to search names on the federal data base was $3.75 per name.

Senator Leff opined that being dishonest on an application should have strong
consequences for any physician when dealing with the subject matter of past
disciplinary action.

Dr. Charles Schwengel, President of the Homeopathic Medical Licensing Board,
told the Committee that being dishonest on an application was the most egregious of
unprofessional conduct that could happen.

In response to Representative Knaperek, Ms. Springer stated that a physician lying on
the application was discovered once and a letter of concern was issued.

Representative Knaperek opined that there should be a certain amount of consideration
afforded to the applicant on whether the incident was an issue of forgetfulness or
deliberate intent.

SENATE HEALTH AND HOUSE HEALTH COMMITTEE
OF REFERENCE

Tuesday, November 8, 2005

Page 8



In response to Senator Cannell, Ms. Springer stated that setting aside funds to check
each individual physician’s background would be a step in the right direction.

Senator Allen remarked that the concerns stated today could be addressed in the
forthcoming audit.

In response to Representative Quelland, Ms. Springer told the Committee that some
traditional doctors became homeopathic physicians, and then dropped their traditional
medical license.

In response to Representative Quelland’s comments on a medical doctor dropping their
license to pursue homeopathy due to decreased chances of medical malpractice
occuring, Dr. Schwengel remarked that he could not comment on the personal reasons
a physician might do this.

In response to Representative Murphy, Ms. Springer stated that the percentage of
homeopathic physicians who were previously licensed as medical doctors was very low.

Representative Murphy told the Committee that some physicians may choose to not
carry medical malpractice insurance to avoid becoming a target for medical malpractice.

Senator Cannell opined that there was a fear with physicians of becoming a target for
medical malpractice by carrying medical malpractice insurance.

In response to Senator Waring, Ms. Springer stated that BHME kept records indefinitely
of reported complaints against homeopathic physicians. She told the Committee that in
her opinion, the BHME should only keep records for up to five years similar to other
medical boards.

In response to Senator Waring, Ms. Springer remarked that she felt it necessary to keep
records of complaints for longer than five years, only if they were substantiated.

In response to Senator Allen suggesting that more public members should be on the
BHME, Ms. Springer said that additional public members on the Board would be a good
idea.

Public Testimony

Dr. Kathleen Fry, dually licensed by the Arizona Medical Board and Arizona
Homeopathic Medical Board, told the Committee that she had gathered a large
amount of important information pertaining to the BHME that she would like to share
with the Legislature and the Office of the Auditor General. She stated that she had been
committed to the practice of homeopathic and alternative medicine for twenty years in
Scottsdale, Arizona. She remarked that it was not her intent to keep patients from
receiving homeopathic care. Dr. Fry opined that the BHME had been grossly negligent

SENATE HEALTH AND HOUSE HEALTH COMMITTEE
OF REFERENCE

Tuesday, November 8, 2005

Page 9



in its spiritual, moral and judicial responsibilities to protect the public from unscrupulous
physicians by licensing felons, failing to adequately discipline physicians who had
harmed patients, failing to adequately file complaints against other board members and
by giving licenses to physicians who could not pass a basic oral examination of
homeopathy. She stated that when she was recruited to the BHME in 1994, she was
informed by the Board that her dues were necessary to keep the Board in existence and
to allow her to continue to practice homeopathic medicine. Dr. Fry remarked that the
dues for the Association were $1000 per year in addition to the $500 per year licensing
fee and the $150 dispensing fee. She explained that if a homeopathic physician in
Arizona lost their M.D. license in another state, they could still practice homeopathy
here in Arizona which gives that physician the power to write prescriptions for all
classes of drugs, conduct minor surgery in their office, perform acupuncture and various
other medical techniques. In conclusion, Dr. Fry told the Committee that the
homeopathic license gives the physician a much broader range of modalities that they
can use with much less scrutiny and training.

In response to Senator Waring, Dr. Fry stated that in theory, physicians who had marks
on their records in other states should be rehabilitated in that state before being allowed
a license in Arizona, but that had not always been the case.

In response to Representative Knaperek, Dr. Fry remarked that transcripts from board
meetings that she had obtained from Ms. Springer, were public record.

In response to Senator Leff, Dr. Fry explained that a device called a sputnik originated
in Russia and is swallowed by a patient and designed to kill parasites by radiation. She
told the committee that a physician sold the device to a patient in Florida over the
phone, and that upon taking this device orally, the patient developed a bowel
obstruction resulting in the removal of several feet of her intestine. She added that the
said physician, being one of the originators of the BHME, only received a letter of
concern and an apology by the Board for placing that letter in the physicians file.

In response to Senator Waring, Dr. Springer told the Committee that she disagreed with
Ms. Fry’s perception of the Board.

Dr. Todd Rowe, Homeopathic and Integrative Medical Physician, Desert Institute
of Classical Homeopathy, dually licensed, told the Committee that he had been
practicing homeopathic medicine for over twenty years. He urged the Committee to
continue the BHME. He remarked that after attending several meetings over the years
of the BHME, he had found most of what Dr. Fry said to be untrue.

In response to Senator Cannell, Dr. Rowe stated that the number of out-of-state
homeopathic physicians licensed in Arizona was very small. He explained that Arizona
was one of only three states who had homeopathy boards and that this was another
reason for an increase in out-of-state applicants in this State.

SENATE HEALTH AND HOUSE HEALTH COMMITTEE
OF REFERENCE

Tuesday, November 8, 2005

Page 10



In response to Senator Leff, Dr. Rowe said that his homeopathy school had a 1,000
hour program for homeopathy, with plans on expanding that program to 4,000 hours
within the next few years.

In response to Senator Leff, Dr. Rowe stated that the qualifications for a license for
homeopathy consisted of either 40 hours of class of homeopathy, in addition to 300
hours of alternative medicine, or 90 hours of class for homeopathy. He opined that this
met the minimum requirements to become a homeopathic physician and commented on
the fact that some applicants were already licensed medical doctors.

Lee Bakunin, practicing attorney in Arizona for 36 years, representing self, told the
committee that he had spent the last eleven years of his life studying homeopathy. He
explained that after the required 90 hours, there was no continuing education required
to continue practicing homeopathy. Mr. Bakunin said that the Auditor General may
come across the problem of incomplete records of past BHME meetings.

In response to Representative Quelland, Mr. Bakunin said that he currently had studied
about 2,000 hours of homeopathy.

Gladys Conroy, patient of homeopathy, representing self stated that homeopathy
had saved her life. She told the Committee that standard medication caused her great
danger.

Clifford Heinrich, practicing family physician for alternative medicines, opined that
no alternative medical board should be able to have jurisdiction over the spiritual
practice of homeopathy. He added that he had obtained over 1,200 hours of
homeopathy. Dr. Heinrich told the Committee that he had a petition with 200 signatures
recognizing homeopathy as a spiritual practice. He stated that he had an additional
petition to request the Legislature audit the BHME for “reasons previously addressed in
the meeting.”

In response to Senator Allen, Dr. Heinrich opined that homeopathy was being
misrepresented by the BHME from its original spiritual foundation, causing the public to
believe they were receiving homeopathic care when in fact, they were not.

In response to Representative Knaperek question about the spiritual aspect of
homeopathy, Dr. Heinrich explained that a nonmaterial substance was one that had
been diluted to a point where the original property is no longer there, leaving only the
essence of that object.

In response to Representative Murphy, Dr. Heinrich told the Committee that he wanted
the separation between homeopathy and alternative medicines distinguished by the
State.

Amanya Jacobs, Director of Evolution of Self/Soul School Homeopathy, remarked
that she was deeply committed to making homeopathy available to all citizens in the

SENATE HEALTH AND HOUSE HEALTH COMMITTEE
OF REFERENCE

Tuesday, November 8, 2005

Page 11



State. She said that the Board regulated activities that it deemed homeopathy which
were totally unrelated to that area of medicine. Ms. Jacobs stated that she was in favor
of an audit of the BHME.

Linda Heming, Arizona Homeopathic and Integrative Medical Association, told the
committee that western medicine could not help her and homeopathy saved her life.

Senator Leff remarked that the open meeting law stated that recordings and minutes
must be kept by the open body and must be accurate and open for inspection three
days after the meeting, with no language about whether or not they could be destroyed
at any time period.

Russell Olinsky, patient of homeopathy, spoke in favor of the BHME.

Cynthia MacLuskie, patient of homeopathy, told the Committee that all homeopathy
medicines were not available at health food stores and that prescriptions were the only
way to obtain some of these medicines.

Lisa Platt, Arizona Homeopathic and Integrative Medical Association, speaking on
behalf of the BHME, remarked that BHME was not recruiting felons. She stated that a
number of patients had told her how homeopathy had saved their lives.

Senator Allen moved that the Senate Health and House Health
Committee of Reference recommend that the Board of Homeopathic
Medical Examiners continue for two years, adding the request for an
audit addressing the concerns covered in today’s committee.

Representative Quelland explained his vote. He said that although he did not have an
educational background in homeopathy, the homeopathic physicians had a certain
amount of disagreement and confusion among themselves. He reminded the
Committee that this was just a recommendation and that someone was going to create
a bill and that bill would be voted on, making today’s vote not a guarantee that the
Board will continue, and he voted “aye.”

Senator Cannell explained his vote. He said that although he advocated homeopathy
and the continuation of the Board, that the BHME had suffered a “major black eye”
today. He opined that the director and the president of the boards had not changed their
attitudes and that they should consider their Board a precious commodity by not diluting
their group of good physicians with out of state applicants with questionable credentials
and he voted “aye.”

Senator Leff explained her vote. She requested the Auditor General to do both a
financial and performance audit. She remarked that the people who came forward today
against the Board should feel free to do so without retaliation and she voted “aye.”

SENATE HEALTH AND HOUSE HEALTH COMMITTEE
OF REFERENCE

Tuesday, November 8, 2005

Page 12



Senator Waring explained his vote. He said that he was very frustrated with the Board,
and that he would be the first to vote “no” on a bill in the following session if changes
weren’'t made, but since today’s vote was merely a recommendation, he would vote
“aye.

Representative Murphy explained his vote. He said that he shared many of the
concerns voiced by the Committee members today and looked forward to hearing what
the Auditor General had to say and he voted “aye.”

The motion CARRIED by aroll call vote of 9-0-1 (Attachment 1).
Representative Murphy RECESSED the meeting at 1:35 p.m. to the sound of the gavel.
Representative Murphy RECONVENED the meeting at 2:30 p.m.

Presentation by the Arizona Midwifery Institute

Marinah Valenzuela Farrell, President of the Arizona Midwifery Institute (AMI),
submitted handouts (Attachment A) and (Attachment B) to the Committee. She told the
Committee that as midwives, their main concern was for safe outcomes of mothers and
babies. She remarked that midwives chose home birth because they believe that birth is
a natural and safe event in the life of a woman. Ms. Farrell explained that in the 1970’s,
midwifery became licensed in the State, yet because of medical liability issues,
midwives had experienced difficulty in consults with physicians and access to items to
assist in home birth.

In response to Senator Allen, Ms. Farrell stated that midwife licensing exams were very
tough and that she had received specialized intravenous training in New Mexico through
the local hospital.

In response to Senator Cannell, Ms. Farrell told the Committee that licensing of
midwives was dependent upon number of hours of experience in child birth delivery with
that applicant. She stated that there were also schools available to midwives that
involved intense clinical training. Ms. Farrell said that a surveyor in the Department of
Special Licensure administered a national exam to applicants in which upon passing,
the applicant must then go through an oral board and upon passing this, must complete
a practical exam which is overseen by the surveyor and other midwives. She told the
Committee that midwives were trained in resuscitating babies.

In response to Senator Leff, Ms. Farrell stated that the midwives were requesting that a
physician not be required to sign off on supplies.

Representative Lopez opined that her own personal experience of giving birth to her last
two children at home from midwives was a wonderful experience.

SENATE HEALTH AND HOUSE HEALTH COMMITTEE
OF REFERENCE

Tuesday, November 8, 2005

Page 13



Representative Quelland informed the Committee that Arizona had 53 licensed
midwives with 22 of them located in Maricopa County and that there were 343 midwife
births in the home in 2004 in the State.

In response to Representative Quelland, Ms. Farrell remarked that none of the 343
reported midwife births reported in 2004 resulted in any problems. She stated that
although medical malpractice and liability insurance was available to midwives, the
majority refused it due to its cost in proportion to their pay. She told the Committee that
the Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System (AHCCCS) discontinued the
payment for midwife delivery two years ago due to midwives not carrying medical
malpractice and liability insurance which could possibly put AHCCCS at risk for such
claims.

Senator Leff stated that midwives dealt mostly with low-risk births and that she would
like to see the issue of AHCCCS discontinuing payment for midwife births examined.

Senator Cannell opined that the Committee should hear from AHCCCS because they
obviously found midwifery funds a financial risk for some legitimate reason.

Ms. Farrell told the Committee that mothers who chose home births mainly did so, not
for financial reasons, but because of belief that the hospital environment was just one
intervention leading to another.

Public Testimony

Rory Hays, Arizona Nurses Association, said that the items asked for by the AMI
were appropriate, if accompanied by more training. She stated that she opposed
expanding prescription privileges for anything requiring a Drug Enforcement Agency
number.

In response to Representative Quelland, Ms. Hays said that certification would be
appropriate for midwives.

Ms. Farrell stated that the only thing midwives were requesting was the power to obtain
items already in their reach through a physician, without that physician’s pre-approval
and that the laws were already in place on limitations for uses with these items.

Representative Quelland moved that the Senate Health and House
Health Committee of Reference recommend that the Legislature
expand the scope of practice for Arizona’s licensed midwives by
allowing procurement, possession, and administration of various
medical devices and medications which will be named in the bill. The
motion was CARRIED by voice vote.

SENATE HEALTH AND HOUSE HEALTH COMMITTEE
OF REFERENCE

Tuesday, November 8, 2005

Page 14



Senator Allen opined that midwifery was a choice to be made by the citizen and she
hoped that fatalities did not occur due to the choice of using such a method.

Presentation by the Arizona Association for Home Care

Suzanne Gilstrap, representing the patients for the Arizona Association for Home
Care (AAHC), stated that AAHC was founded in 1983 with a mission to advance quality
home care as an integral component of the health care delivery system. She told the
Committee that she believed in continuing education for home care providers. She
remarked that AAHC had discussed having a joint workshop with the Physical Therapy
Association (PTA) but never actually initiated these workshops. Ms. Gilstrap requested
that the Committee grant an expansion to allow physical therapy assistants to work
under general supervision of a physical therapist as opposed to direct supervision. She
told the Committee that the AAHC respectfully requested the joint Committee
recommend that physical therapy assistants be allowed to practice in the home health
care setting and only in that setting under the following conditions:

e The supervising physical therapist shall be solely responsible for
evaluating the patient and determining a plan of care.

e The supervising physical therapist shall be available at all times via
telecommunication while the physical therapist assistant is providing
treatment interventions.

e The supervising physical therapist supervises no more than two physical
therapy assistants.

e The supervising physical therapist shall see the patient and revise the plan
of care no less than every 21 days.

e The supervising physical therapist not assign responsibilities to the
physical therapy assistants that in any way allow them to provide
evaluation services for procedures.

e Continuing education requirements should be added to the statute as well.

e The physical therapist would be the one responsible for final evaluation
and discharge of the patient.

In response to Senator Arzberger, Ms. Gilstrap said that proposing a mileage limit would
be a good idea in reference to a physical therapist along with the constant
telecommunication contact. She stated that it was not unusual to recommend that the
practice of home care be extended to other areas outside of the home such as
hospitals.

SENATE HEALTH AND HOUSE HEALTH COMMITTEE
OF REFERENCE

Tuesday, November 8, 2005

Page 15



In response to Senator Leff, Ms. Gilstrap remarked that the AAHC was not intending to
mandate what physical therapists do, but to enable legislation that would allow them to
choose.

In response to Representative Murphy, Ms. Gilstrap stated that home care therapist
assistants were well schooled for their job no matter what setting, with the exception of
no clinical experience required of the physical therapist.

In response to Senator Waring, Ms. Gilstrap remarked that in all fields of medicine,
health care providers were experiencing an inability to serve patients.

Representative Lopez opined that an outside organization should not be directing
physical therapists on how to conduct their practice.

In response to Senator Allen, Ms. Gilstrap told the Committee that currently more than
45 states allow general supervision in the home health care setting and that the only
two states that do not allow it are Pennsylvania and Arizona.

Public Testimony

Karen Jeselun, President of the Arizona Association for Home Care, stated that
even if there were no home care physical therapist available at the time, a patient could
still be released from the hospital even though they required home care to continue
recovery. Ms. Jeselun compared the relationship between a physical therapist and a
physical therapist assistant to that of a registered nurse and a licensed practical nurse.
She told the Committee that all of their home care providers go through an interview
process, a mandatory criminal background check and participate in orientation often
with preceptors.

In response to Representative Knaperek, Ms. Jeselun stated that Medicare currently
paid home health agencies on an episode basis, meaning for every 60 days of time that
patient is in the care of a home health provider, the home care provider gets a lump
sum. She opined that she was hoping to serve more patients with no increase in cost.

Susie Stevens, representing the Arizona Physical Therapy Association (AZPTA),
informed the Committee that the definitions of general supervision and direct
supervision needed to be reviewed. She stated that she was there in opposition to the
sunrise request.

Heidi Herbst Paakkonen, Executive Director of the Arizona Board of Physical
Therapy (ABPT), told the Committee that the ABPT regulates about 3,200 physical
therapists and 434 physical therapist assistants. She said that due to lack of detailed
information at this time, she would encourage the Board to oppose the Sunrise
Application of the AAHC.

SENATE HEALTH AND HOUSE HEALTH COMMITTEE
OF REFERENCE

Tuesday, November 8, 2005

Page 16



In response to Representative Knaperek, Ms. Paakkonen remarked that there were
exactly 3,268 licensed in the State but not all of them worked in Arizona. She told the
Committee that approximately 2,800 physical therapists listed Arizona addresses. She
stated that there were 434 physical therapy assistants and that approximately 396
reside in Arizona and that it was ABPT’s estimate that 350 of them were currently
working in the field of physical therapy.

In response to Representative Quelland, Ms. Paakkonen stated that the ABPT was
required by statute to have three physical therapists and two public members, but no
physical therapist assistants.

In response to Senator Leff, Ms. Paakkonen told the Committee that the ABPT does
and has disciplined physical therapist assistants.

Bob Direnfeld, President of the Arizona Physical Therapy Association (AZPTA),
remarked that his organization was the only one in the State representing physical
therapists. He told the Committee that his association opposed the idea of general
supervision. Mr. Direnfeld said that patients were getting discharged from the hospital
too early in most cases compared to years ago, which cause a greater need for these
home care physicians. He remarked that a therapist was ultimately responsible for
anything the physical therapy assistant does which puts the physical therapist’s license
on the line.

In response to Representative Murphy, Mr. Direnfeld opined that passing legislation
supporting general care could potentially decrease an even larger amount of physical
therapists.

In response to Senator Cannell, Mr. Direnfeld stated that he was not sure that there was
a shortage in home health care providers. He also remarked that setting a parameter or
definition of a home care patient, would cut down on the patient load.

Representative Knaperek opined that physical therapist assistants should have more of
a vote on the Board.

Peter Zawicki, in favor of the sunrise recommendation, told the Committee that
physical therapists and physical therapist assistants were trained at community colleges
and technical schools across the country. He opined that it was critical that there be
communication between the physical therapist and the physical therapist assistant in all
patient care.

In response to Senator Cannell, Mr. Zawicki stated that physical therapist assistants
were under direct supervision during the education process.

In response to Representative Murphy, Mr. Zawicki remarked that to be able to perform
in public health care, it would be helpful if a physical therapist assistant had a certain
amount or certain type of training.

SENATE HEALTH AND HOUSE HEALTH COMMITTEE
OF REFERENCE

Tuesday, November 8, 2005

Page 17



Senator Leff opined that home health patients are the most vulnerable patients and she
felt uncomfortable “experimenting” with the care of those patients.

Kerry Halcomb, Physical Therapy on Wheels, representing AAHC, opined that he
did not believe that a physical therapist could adequately supervise a physical therapist
assistant.

Gayle Haas, physical therapist, representing AAHC, remarked that a physical
therapist and a physical therapist assistant can work together for years and develop a
relationship which allowed for better understanding and communication skills with one
another.

Deborah Bornmann, physical therapist, stated that she did not feel represented by
her own board. She opined that it was great for an outside organization to try to help
physical therapists.

Representative Quelland moved that the Senate Health and House
Health Committee of Reference recommend that the Legislature
expand the scope of practice for licensed physical therapist
assistants by allowing home health visits under the general
supervision of licensed physical therapists. The motion was
CARRIED by voice vote.

Senator Waring stated that although he was unhappy with what he had heard
today, he hoped discussions were started to improve the situation.

Representative Knaperek remarked that she hoped they could work out their
differences for the benefit of the State.

Senator Arzberger opined that changes do need to be made and issues need to
be addressed.

Representative Murphy stated that hopefully, this would get people back into
discussions.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:12 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Jeff Turner
Committee Secretary

(Tapes and attachments on file in the Secretary of the Senate’s Office/Resource Center, Room 115.)

SENATE HEALTH AND HOUSE HEALTH COMMITTEE
OF REFERENCE

Tuesday, November 8, 2005

Page 18




<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.7
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BlackItalic
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /ArialUnicodeMS
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Impact
    /LucidaConsole
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TimesNewRomanMT-ExtraBold
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 5.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents suitable for reliable viewing and printing of business documents.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


